
           

 

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

City Council Meeting
Regular Session

February 14, 2022
6:00 P.M.

City Hall - Council Chambers - 6131 Taylorsville Road

 

           
1. Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore   
 

2. Invocation - Pastor John Gakwaya Of The Compassion Free Methodist Church At
6875 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio

  

 

3. Pledge Of Allegiance   
 

4. Roll Call   
 

5. Approval Of Minutes   
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2022
 
6. Special Presentations/Announcements   
 

7. Citizens Comments   
 

8. Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items   
 

9. City Manager Report   



 

10. Pending Business   
 

A. An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning From Agricultural To Planned Residential And A
Basic Development Plan For The Property Located On The East Side Of Bellefontaine
Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And Further Identified As Parcel Number
P70-03908-0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The
Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case 21-47).
(third reading)

 
B. An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning To Planned Residential And A Basic Development

Plan For The Property Located At 6502 Old Troy Pike And Further Identified As Parcel
Number P70 04004 0003 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Tax Map And Accepting
The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case 21-34).
(fourth reading)

 
11. New Business   
 

ADMINISTRATION
Bryan Chodkowski, Interim City Manager

  

 

A. A Motion To Direct The City Manager To Submit The Proposed Amendments To Part
Eleven - Planning And Zoning Code, Title One - Subdivision Regulations, Chapter 1109 -
Subdivision Design Standards Of The Huber Heights City Code Regarding Sidewalk
Requirements To The Planning Commission For Consideration.

 
B. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Apply For, And Accept If Awarded, A

Grant Through The Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission To Explore Becoming
An Age-Friendly Community As Designated By AARP.
(first reading)

 
C. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Certain Lease.

(first reading)
 

D. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Award A Contract To KAP Signs To
Perform Cosmetic Maintenance On The Digital Highway Sign At The Rose Music Center
And Waiving The Competitive Bidding Requirements.
(first reading)

 
E. An Ordinance Designating Construction Noise During Certain Hours As Civil Infractions

And Authorizing The City Manager To Adopt A Fine And Penalty Schedule For Such
Infractions By Enacting Chapter 1323 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The City Of Huber
Heights.
(first reading)

 
F. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise And Receive Bids From



F. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise And Receive Bids From
Qualified Firms For The 2022 Street Improvement Program Non-Concrete Work.
(first reading)

 
G. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From

Qualified Firms For The 2022 Sidewalk Replacement Program And The Concrete Portion
Of The 2022 Street Improvement Program.
(first reading)

 
H. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From

Qualified Firms For The Construction Of The 2022 Rehabilitation Of Sewer Lines Project.
(first reading)

 
I. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise And Receive Bids From

Qualified Firms For The Construction Of The Thomas Cloud Path Resurfacing Project.
(first reading)

 
J. A Resolution Accepting Certain Streets And Public Improvements For The Carriage

Trails Subdivision.
(first reading)

 
K. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract To Purchase Two

(2) Class Seven Snowplow Dump Trucks And Appurtenant Equipment Thereto For The
Public Works Division And Waiving The Formal Bidding Requirements.
(first reading)

 
L. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit Bids And Award A Contract For

Services Related To The Maintenance, Repair And Minor Construction Of Traffic Signals
And Outdoor Decorative Lighting.
(first reading)

 
12. City Official Reports and Comments   
 

13. Executive Session   
 

14. Adjournment   
 



   
AI-8167     Minutes      A.        
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Approval of Minutes - 1/24/22
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
City Council Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2022

Purpose and Background
Approval of the minutes from the January 24, 2022 City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:
There are no financial implications to this agenda item.

Attachments
Minutes 



 

1.   Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore

 
  The Huber Heights City Council met in a Regular Session on January 24, 2022. 

Mayor Jeff Gore called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.

 
2.   Invocation - Pastor Louise Wilson Of The Lifepointe Church At 4555 Marshall

Road, Kettering, Ohio

 
3.   Flag Ceremony - Wayne High School Junior ROTC Honor Guard

 
4.   Pledge Of Allegiance

 
5.   Roll Call

Present:  Richard Shaw, Kathleen Baker, Mark Campbell, Nancy
Byrge, Glenn Otto, Ed Lyons, Anita Kitchen, Don Webb, Jeff
Gore 

6.   Approval Of Minutes

 
  A.    City Council Meeting Minutes - January 10, 2022   

 
7.   Special Presentations/Announcements

 
  A.    Culture And Diversity Citizen Action Commission Indigenous Peoples Essay Contest

Awards Presentation - Members Of The Culture And Diversity Citizen Action
Commission And Mayor Jeff Gore

  

 
  Clerk of Council Anthony Rodgers said this presentation was canceled as some of the

participants were unable to be in attendance.  He acknowledged the names of the
winners of the Indigenous Peoples Essay Contest as follows:  

First Place - (Grade 11 and 12):  Manpreet Kaur, Student; Mrs. Jennifer Ostendorf,
Teacher
First Place - (Grade 9 and 10):  Malachi Robinson, Student; Mrs. Ellyn Shellhaas-Cox,
Teacher
Second Place - (Grade 9 and 10) :  Ashley Miller

Mr. Rodgers said each student will receive a check and a certificate from the Culture
and Diversity Citizen Action Commission as winners of the essay contest.

 
8.   Citizens Comments

 
  Mayor Gore reminded the audience of the five-minute limit for Citizens Comments.  

Mr. Ronald Deak said he read about the upcoming City Comprehensive Plan.  He
asked Council to get rid of the ambiguities.  He asked Council to make sure that the
zoning and the Comprehensive Plan agree and do not just say "single family unit" or
"apartments".  He said if there is to be deviation from the Comprehensive Plan, it
should list the mitigating circumstances and he asked what will be added to make the
transition from one zoning district to another.  He said those things would alleviate
what the City is going through now across the street from The Oaks.  He said there is
an awful lot of gray area.

1 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



Mr. Frank Wiley said on Saturday, February 5, 2022 at the Huber Heights Athletic
Foundation, the Hart Scholarship Fish Fry will be held.  He said advance tickets are
$15 and tickets are $20 at the door.   He said there will be raffles, a Monte Carlo, and
great food.  He said the hours are 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.

Mrs. Judy Blankenship said she is Vice President of the Huber Heights Senior Center
and in her second term.  She introduced Pat Lokai, a newly elected Senior Center
Board Member.  She said they are here because they are excited to hear the City is
considering a new Senior Center.  She said 600 people will be so happy.  She said
currently they cannot have many people in the current Senior Center, and they have to
set up and tear down tables for every event.   She encouraged Council to check out
other senior centers in the area and see the amount of space these centers have to
offer.  She said she hopes the Senior Center Board Members are included in the
discussions.  

Mr. Joe Fiori said he and his wife and children have lived in Huber Heights for two
and a half years.  He asked how much jurisdiction the City has in implementing a
mask mandate whether in government buildings, schools, or businesses.  

Mayor Gore said from the City perspective, there is nothing that can be done for
private businesses, as each business makes its own decisions.  He said when the
pandemic first started, a threat level for the spread of virus was established, and
depending on the level, signs were at the entrances of the businesses indicating
whether masks should be worn or recommended.  He said there was never a mask
mandate in City Hall.  He said the City has no jurisdiction over the schools as these are
separate entities.  He said there is no legislation that the City Council can pass that
could dictate to any private company; and any mandate would have to come from the
state or federal level.  He said once the state of emergency was lifted last year, all the
COVID-19 policies the City had were lifted as well.

 
9.   Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items

 
  Mr. Rodgers said there are three Citizens Registered To Speak on Item 11-B and three

Citizens Registered To Speak on Item 12-D.

 
10.   City Manager Report

 
  Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said Choice One was awarded both sections

of the 2022 Water Main Replacement Project.  He said Choice One has committed to
the City's timeframe to have the full engineering work completed by the end of March,
2021.  He said the demolition on Lancer Court should be completed today, but there
will be some site restoration that still needs to be done.  He said on Brandt Pike, some
demolition has been done on the north section of the CR Dayton property as well as
some of the parking lot demolition.  He said he wanted to make sure everyone was
aware that the transaction with the Dayton Metro Library is complete for the sale of
the land for the Huber Heights library at the corner of Premier Way and Brandt Pike,
and the City received a $1,000,000 check.  He said he talked with LWC, the
architectural firm that has been assisting City Staff with several components of the
Marian Meadows redevelopment project.  He said LWC will be engaging in a needs
assessment for the City's administrative purposes, including tax and water services, as
well as the Senior Center.  He said LWC will be meeting with people in the next few
weeks, will get a formal proposal put together shortly, and then LWC will be
engaging with all of the relevant parties to determine all the wants and needs that are
being considered to build a budget and a program for the project.

 
11.   Pending Business

 
  A.    An Ordinance Approving The Editing And Inclusion Of Certain Ordinances And/Or   

2 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



  A.    An Ordinance Approving The Editing And Inclusion Of Certain Ordinances And/Or
Resolutions As Parts Of The Various Component Codes Of The City Code Of Huber
Heights, Ohio; Providing For The Adoption And Publication Of New Matter In The
Updated And Revised City Code As Supplement 8; And Repealing Ordinances And
Resolutions In Conflict Therewith.
(second reading)

  

 
  Clerk of Council Anthony Rodgers said he had no additional comments.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Mr. Webb seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb,
and Mr. Shaw voted yea; none voted nay. The motion passes 8-0.

 
  B.    An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning From Agricultural To Planned Residential And

A Basic Development Plan For The Property Located On The East Side Of
Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And Further Identified As
Parcel Number P70-03908-0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And
Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case 21-47).
(second reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said he had an opportunity to talk with the developer late last week

regarding incorporating some of the additional comments and concepts that were
presented to the Council from citizens' comments.  He said based on those
conversations, the developer has asked the Council to continue this item to another
meeting so the developer can continue to review, evaluate, and explore the elements of
the conversation to try to be more responsive to the needs and wants of the neighbors.

Mr. Ron Deak said he had a conversation with the developer in his kitchen.  He said
the developer could not answer the question about "why here?"  He said the
Comprehensive Plan specifies single detached units with medium to large lots.  He
said the zoning is three to five acres with agricultural use, so you can have animals. 
He said the developer provided the things that went into the calculation of the
retention pond, but he could not provide the calculations.  He said he was still waiting
for the answers mentioned at the last meeting when Mr. Shaw asked Mr. Deak what he
is still waiting on.  He said engineers come up with a number that goes into a number
to solve the problem.  He said what the City Council has to do is take a
Comprehensive Plan, follow that plan, and input the engineering portion and come up
with a number.  He said he asked the developer if there is anything else that could go
on the property based on the cost and the developer said no.   He said the
Comprehensive Plan needs to have more definitive items instead of single-family
detached homes.  He said he is glad this item is going to another reading, but he is still
waiting for his calculations.

Mrs. Cindy Smith said she has talked with the developer several times.  She said the
numbers do not work for the people who live there.  She said at the Council Work
Session, there was a question about the discharge of firearms.  She said the Mayor had
asked how many people around there have enough land that this would be a factor. 
She said she looked at the bordering properties, and she said 70 percent of the
properties that border on that land are people allowed to discharge weapons.  She said
people can discharge weapons whenever they want, not just during hunting season. 
She said she had discussions with Mrs. Byrge regarding a berm for Plat 9 of The
Oaks.  She said under the ordinance, the developer who is also the developer who
wants to build across the street, is required to put sidewalks, gutters, and berm along
Fishburg Road.  She said she wrote a letter to the City back in November, 2021 when
the berm was being installed.  She said the sidewalk is not there yet, but the street is
there.  She said the berm in several locations is below the level of the road and does
nothing to block the housing.  She said the builder was talking about putting a berm in
that would block the new housing along Bellefontaine Road, but the berm the
developer put in along Fishburg Road does not serve that purpose.  She said this site is
a horrible place to put 132 houses; it is an urban project in a rural area.  

Ms. Tracy Harmon said she lives on the property to the north of this area.  She said she

3 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



only has four acres, so she cannot discharge firearms, but a lot of shooting goes on. 
She said at the last meeting, the builder said he would consider putting some kind of
divider to the south of her property to maintain some privacy.  She said she assumes
this is an HOA-maintained property, and the screening will be maintained by the
HOA.  She said her concern is privacy.  She said the road work was just done on
Bellefontaine Road last year.  She said they lost all of their privacy on Bellefontaine
Road from that road work and now they will be exposed on the other side. 

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to pass this item to a
third reading.  He said this item will be passed to a third reading.

 
  C.    An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning To Planned Residential And A Basic

Development Plan For The Property Located At 6502 Old Troy Pike And Further
Identified As Parcel Number P70 04004 0003 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s
Tax Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning
Case 21-34).
(third reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said he has had an opportunity to speak with the applicant, and the

applicant is going back and forth currently regarding potential PILOT payments
associated with this project.  He said there were some calculation hurdles for the
applicant to get over.  He said in other states for this type of project there are
automatic discounts that come with the assessed value and that is not the case here. 
He said City Staff had to work through helping the applicant understand how to go
about calculating potential scenarios.  He said the applicant is doing the review, and he
is expecting those numbers later this week.  He asked the Council to continue this
item to another reading.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to pass this item to a
fourth reading.  He said this item will be passed to a fourth reading.

Ms. Baker asked if the City had received the traffic study for this development.  

Mr. Chodkowski said the traffic study for that project is done.

 
12.   New Business

 
  ADMINISTRATION

Bryan Chodkowski, Interim City Manager

 
  A.    A Resolution Declaring The Purchase Of Potable Water As A Valid Public Purpose And

Authorizing The Purchase And Distribution Thereof On An As Needed Basis.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said he had no additional comments.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mr. Webb moved to adopt; Mr. Otto seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Mr.
Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, and
Ms. Baker voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  B.    A Resolution Creating A Special Jonetta Street Sewer Tap-In District For The Provision

Of Sanitary Sewer To Certain Residential Properties.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said he had no additional comments.  

4 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



  Mr. Chodkowski said he had no additional comments.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Ms. Baker seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, and
Mr. Campbell voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  C.    A Resolution Consenting To The Ohio Director Of Transportation To Resurface State

Route 202 From Fishburg Road To The South Corporation Limit.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation is typical legislation from the Ohio Department

of Transportation (ODOT) in line with the City's partnership for the maintenance of all
state routes that run through the City, but in particular with State Route 202.  He said
there will be follow-up legislation as ODOT gets closer to the project and the actual
costs are known.  He said this item is just a procedural item for (ODOT).  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mr. Shaw moved to adopt; Ms. Baker seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Mr.
Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, and
Mrs. Byrge voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  D.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Enter Into A

Development Agreement With Homestead Development, LLC With Respect To Senior
Housing Near The Former Marian Meadows Site.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski gave a presentation to address this matter prior to Council's

consideration.  He said there are a lot of moving parts in and around the proposed
development project area and there are some elements of this project that date back
several years.  He said he would like to talk about Homestead at The Meadows.  He
said The Meadows is City Staff's compromise with respect to Marian Meadows, the
strip mall the City acquired along with the CR Dayton property that has certain
connotations to it, as well as the originally proposed name of Southpointe Crossing
which had different connotations to it, so it needs to be called something.  Until a
better suggestion comes along, he said this area will be referred to as The Meadows. 
He said this development was the concept design that was presented on behalf of the
City just over a year ago with respect to the unveiling of the City's partnership with the
Dayton Metro Library.  He said the concept drawing reflects some other consistent
items, including the CR Dayton strip mall, Dogtown, and the existing Premier Health
facility and a conceptual Premier Health facility in the future.  He said the remainder
of the elements changed somewhat across the site, but these elements are based on
another document which is the Brandt Pike Revitalization Plan.  He said he wants to
make sure he touches on that point of some continuous elements through the
concepts.  He said in working to develop components of the City, development is
about relationships, building relationships and maintaining those relationships.  He
said one of the relationships started two and a half years ago was with Homestead
Properties in Columbus.  He said Homestead Properties is traditionally affiliated with
senior housing and student housing.  He said City Staff talked about the senior
product and standing up market rate units, and that was also the time the City was
talking with Broad Reach.  He said Homestead Properties elected to work first with
Broad Reach and indicated they had a desire to work here.  He said The Meadows is
an updated concept drawing.  He reviewed the drawing and pointed out proposed
potential civic spaces, one of which is the Senior Center.  He said the information
Homestead Properties provided in response to comments made by the Council,
citizens, and comments made as part of the Brandt Pike Revitalization Study.   He
reviewed the public roadways through the development.  He said the plan represents
133 senior apartments for age 55 plus, and then 192 market rate units.  He said
Homestead senior housing product is in existence in the Dayton market.  He reviewed
the development agreement and the price.  He said the partnership with Homestead
includes the public road, utilities, and stormwater split.  He said this development also

5 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



presents a revenue source utilizing the TIF overlay and the maintenance of this facility
as a public gathering or recreation space.  He said the developer is looking into
utilizing a post-1994 CRA and a TIF overlay.  He said the CRA grants a 50 percent
tax abatement for 15 years and then afterwards 100 percent of the taxes are due.  He
said the TIF would capture certain amounts of millage due to all the various parties. 
He said the TIF the City is proposing is a non-school TIF and he discussed its effect
on Huber Heights Schools and the Joint Vocational School.  He said the total net
30-year surplus is over $7 million.  He spoke about how all of the different projects
come together and he said the development agreement is not absent thought and
conscious application of other information and data.  He said new retail space is
relative to this project, just not on this project.  He talked about economic
development and how it works.  He said a lot of what The Meadows plan represents
comes from the 2017 Brandt Pike Revitalization Plan.  He gave the history of the
Brandt Pike Revitalization Plan and he discussed target markets.  He said the study in
that area showed low incomes and no discretionary income.  He provided statistics on
the neighborhoods, population, incomes, and traffic counts.  He said the increasing
population at this site benefits businesses around the area.  He said adding more
people with more expendable income to attract elevated market options in fewer
buildings is what this proposal does, and he asked the Council to adopt a resolution in
support of the development agreement.  He said this plan offers 132 age 55-plus
senior apartments, 192 market rate apartments, and $40 million dollars worth of
taxable real estate that did not exist before.  

Mrs. Cindy Schwartz said she lives in Ward 2 and everything she saw and heard
tonight is amazing.  She said everyone talks about wanting growth in the south of the
City, and then the City finally starts to do that and then people do not want "that"
growth.  She said she does not see how people in the south part of the City would not
want this development.

Mr. Ron Deak said this development is left hanging and he asked what are the steps
that have to happen to correct the deficiencies of suburban sprawl.  He said he spoke
with a Councilmember, and what the developer is putting in across from The Oaks is
perfect for that area.  He said now things are back to apartments.  He said the property
was sold to the library for a million dollars for only a few acres.  He said now the City
is selling property at $50,000 an acre.  He said that transaction is a sweetheart deal for
the developer.

Mayor Gore said this piece of property is one specific piece of property.  He said the
Marian Meadows site is one phase of the Brandt Pike Revitalization Program.  He said
the City needs to recoup the $8.5 million spent in order for the taxpayers to have
confidence in the Council to continue revitalizing the corridor.  He said economic
development does not happen without people or money.  He said this is not a project
that can be voted on based on emotion.  He said the Council voted to spend the $8.5
million buying that property to bulldoze it to generate a new aesthetic look for that
area.  He said, if it is not about the money, where does the City go from here?  He said
the City has to have the ability to recoup its investment to duplicate that process from
Kitridge Road to Fishburg Road.  He said the City took a step and invested in itself
and now someone wants to contribute $40 million of taxable property in the center of
town.  He said if the City does not do something, the City will always get what it
always got.  He said when you minimize retail space, property values go up because
there is a bigger demand for the space.  He discussed the advantages of this
development.  He said this is Phase One of the Brandt Pike Revitalization Plan.  He
said all that can be done as a Council is to pick up the torch from other Councils, move
it forward, and advance it in the best way possible so when other Councils are elected,
they can do the same thing and leave the City in a better position than when Council
found it.  He said he has looked at that hunk of crap for 40 years, and he is proud of
what this project can do.  

Mr. Jeffrey Held said the presentation was masterful.  He told a story about where he
grew up in Pennsylvania in an area with similar issues with strip malls, no
businesses, and people moving out of the City.  He said the Council having the
wisdom to start seeing that happen and making sure it does not happen in Huber
Heights is a great thing.  

Mrs. Cindy Smith said she was surprised to see this item on the agenda as she was at
the Town Hall Meeting.  She said she felt this development did not represent what

6 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



many people spoke about.  She said she remembered discussing providing
owner-occupied homes, not more rentals in the City.  She told the story she told the
Council before about a City she moved to that went through rapid growth and
eventually rentals changed the flavor and soul of the City.  She said she heard a
statistic that Huber Heights has 30 percent rentals, and the owner-occupied portion of
this plan is not there.  She said she is grateful there is senior housing,and she has so
many questions, such as if the City is looking at grants, if Huber Heights residents are
a priority, if this housing is income limited or supplemented.  She said there needs to
be more discussion and thought put into this development and the effects of what this
project will have on all of the residents.  

Mayor Gore said this item is a resolution to sell the property and there is nothing on
the agenda that would preclude or eliminate the need for the developer to have a Basic
Development Plan to go to the Planning Commission and he explained the same
processes this development would go through like any other development.  

Mrs. Smith said in Exhibit A for this item, it specifically states 133 rental units and
183 market units.  

Mayor Gore said that is the plan, but the look, design, and all of those things would
come back for review with the Basic Development Plan.  He said if the concern is
only owner-occupied housing or a mix, that is certainly an issue as that is not in the
plan.  He said part of the plan the developer put together was based on the study.  

Mrs. Smith said she looks at the rent for Parkview Apartments, and when Mr.
Chodkowski talked about the income of the area, she said people will not be able to
afford those apartments. 

Mayor Gore said the market rate north of I-70 would be higher than the market rate for
this area.  He said those rents would certainly be different.  He said the reason the
rentals seem like a lot is because of the number of households in the City.  He said if
compared to Centerville, Miamisburg, Kettering and other communities, the rental
portion is virtually the same.  He said the difference is, Huber Heights has 15,000
residential homes in Huber Heights, so 23 percent of the 15,000 houses is more than
23 percent of Beavercreek's 38,000 houses.  

Mayor Gore asked for a motion.

Mr. Webb moved to adopt; Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  

Mr. Otto said on one of the slides there were four items checked off and the one item
not checked off is new retail space.  He said the new retail space is not there.  He said
on civic uses, yes there are civic uses, but nothing new, just relocated.  He said on
traffic connectivity, running the street through from Fishburg Road to Chambersburg
Road is true.  He said it is walkable, if Mr. Chodkowski meant by the pure definition
that he can go there and walk.  He said, then sure, but by that definition, Old Troy
Pike and Brandt Pike are walkable.  He said that was not what was meant by
walkability when talking about the study.  He said he has no reason to go to this design
and walk.  He asked where he would walk to.  He said it would be like every other
place in Huber Heights where you pull in, park, take care of business, go to the car,
and drive to the next place.  He said there is nothing there to walk to.  He said
regarding outdoor space and recreation, he does not get that point.  He asked what his
family is going to do there?  He said the plan hits two out of five items, but he does
not think that development is what people wanted.  He said in the Buxton data,
depending on where he wants to go, he can make the data work for him or not.  He
asked if the data companies address niche markets locality by locality or even on a
regional basis, or only by national retailers. 

Mr. Chodkowski said Buxton or ESRI only responds with the information given.  He
said if the niche market or regional franchise has not provided that information to the
database to be utilized, it would not be reflected within that information.  He said
regardless, the demographics would not be misleading with regard to the same market
elements.  He said if the demographics of Cassano’s do not work, then the
demographics for Marion’s are not going to work either. 

Mrs. Kitchen asked what other developers Mr. Chodkowski worked with in this area.

7 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



Mr. Chodkowski said City Staff has had conversations with several developers, and
this is the one who responded with a proposal. 

Mrs. Kitchen said she went out and walked the neighborhood and talked to residents. 
She said the residents feel they are not heard by this Council and they do not know
how a single row of a tree line is a buffer for a three-story apartment building looking
into their backyards, and in winter there is no buffer.  She said she gave petitions to
Mr. Rodgers, there are emails, and the residents are not happy.  She said notices were
sent out regarding a bike path at Dial Park, and this project is a whole new
development and the residents received no notification and feel blindsided.  She said
these are people who have been there for many years, and they need to be given the
same respect even if their income is not what it is from Old Troy Pike to here.  She
asked if the City should be moving ahead with this project right now, as there are so
many projects going on right now, and a new City Manager will be coming in, and
there is no Economic Development Director.  She said there is a water system issue
still going on, and the development is right in the heart of the water problems.  She
said the City cannot replace every water line right away.  She asked how the water
system is going to be constructed in that area. 

Mr. Chodkowski said, based on the information presented with respect to the
concentration of water main breaks, this particular area is not receiving a
disproportionate number of breaks.  He said the area where the City is seeing a
disproportionate number of breaks, northeast of Chambersburg Road and Old Troy
Pike, is being designed for six sections of water main replacement, which will happen
later in 2022.  He said even if the project under consideration by the Council were to
pass tonight and be fast tracked through all the processes, construction at this location
would not commence until late 2022, coinciding with the water main replacement in
the area of the abnormal number of breaks.  He said because there is not an abnormal
number of breaks in the area designated for the project and the infrastructure for this
project would be going in around the same time as the problematic infrastructure is
being replaced, City Staff do not believe this project would be detrimental to the water
system.  He gave the timeline for installing the infrastructure for the development.  
He said the water main replacement work should be done if not nearly complete, when
this project would come online and begin drawing water from the utility.

Mrs. Kitchen said the numbers do not total as it states the City is selling 17 acres, but
the specifications do not equal that amount.

Mr. Chodkowski said the concept drawing predated the actual verbiage within the
agreement.  He said it is conceptual and subject to final survey as well as the process
for site approval which correlates to Mrs. Kitchen’s earlier comments about
notification to the adjoining neighbors.  He said the process provided through the City
Code or practices approved by Council is being followed.  He said approving this
development agreement does not guarantee the development occurs.  He said the
development still has to go through the formal process before the Planning
Commission.  He said that is when those residents who meet the minimum
requirement for notification would receive notification so they could come to the
Planning Commission and eventually come to Council and provide commentary on
how the project would impact them.   He said City Staff are not being disrespectful or
ignorant as to the needs and the wants of the citizens.  He said City Staff are following
the administrative processes and procedures.  He said City Staff are simply at a point
in the process where the residents are not yet notified and he described the process.

Mrs. Kitchen said when Council received the notice on Friday, it read Council is
trying to approve the project for senior housing and market rate housing, and now it
just reads senior housing and she asked why the market rate housing was eliminated. 

Gerald McDonald said he drafted the legislation and left it out.

Mrs. Kitchen asked, since the City has no Economic Development Director, if there
have been conversations with Community Planning Insights, the company the City is
contracting with for planning services, about the project.

Mr. Chodkowski said that conversation would be part of the process once this
legislation is approved.  He explained the procedures for the terms and conditions of

8 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



sale.

Mrs. Kitchen said at the August 31, 2021, Town Hall Meeting, residents were told
they would get a clean slate proposal because the citizens expressed what they wanted
and the available sketch at that meeting was not what people wanted.  She asked if
anyone had seen a clean slate proposal.  She said people wanted a downtown and this
proposal is not a downtown.  She said there is nothing in the proposal that would bring
her to it unless she is at a City Council Meeting.   She said there are 1,060 parking
spaces, and this area is not a walkable area.  She said Ward 4 should get the same
respect as Ward 1 did with Dial Park, Ward 6 did with the development on
Bellefontaine Road, and Ward 5 did with the apartments that were going in there.  She
said the study of citizens wanted a downtown.  She asked why the residents were
asked if the Council had no desire to make this area a downtown.  She said do not
promise the citizens something that cannot possibly be filled.  She said she was elected
to represent the visions and wishes of the people in Ward 4, and she will be voting no. 

Mayor Gore said he met with Mrs. Kitchen for quite some time and one of things she
asked him to do a couple weeks ago was to have the City Manager provide a letter of
intent to the Cincinnati Reds to provide housing on this site for baseball players for
the Dayton Dragons.  He asked why in Mrs. Kitchen’s mind, housing on this site is
okay for minor league baseball players, but it is not okay for anybody else.  He said
City Staff have a project that is going to provide housing for senior citizens and other
residents, and now suddenly Mrs. Kitchen does not like housing.  He said there has
been talk about a downtown, and he has never been to a downtown area where there is
not a lot of people and a place for a lot of people to live.  He said the revitalization of
Downtown Dayton happened around one item, the Dayton Dragons baseball facility. 
He said there are now restaurants, bars, and a lot of housing.  He said a lot of people
do not believe this plan is what their vision was, but if revitalization is going to start
on Brandt Pike, it has to start with something.  He asked Mrs. Kitchen if the developer
came in and said that would be a perfect idea, and will set aside two buildings and 100
apartments to allow housing for minor league baseball players, would she be a no vote?

Mrs. Kitchen replied it would depend on how it was all set up. 

Mayor Gore said his point is that in this particular case, Mrs. Kitchen is in favor of
some housing, but in the other case, she is not in favor of housing.  He said she has not
clarified that point, and he is having a hard time finding resolution in his own brain
about how housing is okay for baseball players, but not senior citizens.

Mr. Otto said he walked with Mrs. Kitchen through the neighborhood and he
confirmed that Mr. Rodgers had the petitions and emails from residents.

Ms. Baker asked Mr. Rodgers how many emails he received, as she received 15 emails
out of 43,000 residents. 

Mr. Rodgers said he received about 13 emails and approximately 50 signatures on the
petitions. 

Ms. Baker said this project has been in the works since 2015, and if the Council has
not heard from more than 75 people, this is probably a go. 

Mrs. Kitchen said she has been on the Council for only three weeks. 

Ms. Baker repeated this project has been in the works since 2015.

Mr. Otto said not this plan.

Mayor Gore said the point Ms. Baker is making is this plan has been talked about for
seven years now.   He said he has not seen any other proposal by anybody else.

Mr. Otto said he has asked for open discussion and a general working meeting where
the Council can have general discussion to figure this plan out, and that request has
been denied. 

Mr. Shaw asked Mr. Chodkowski, since the public was just notified of this item on
Friday afternoon, is there a rush for the Council to pass this item tonight?

9 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



Mr. Chodkowski said that would be the Council’s decision.

Mr. Shaw asked, in Mr. Chodkowski’s conversations with the developer, has the
developer told Mr. Chodkowski of any type of rush or expedited process it needs.

Mr. Chodkowski said the developer would like to start this process as soon as possible
so they can transfer the build crew from the Broad Reach development at Taylorsville
Road and Old Troy Pike once they are done constructing on the north side of town. 

Mr. Shaw asked, in the development agreement, what is the need for Section 4.11? 
He said if he reads that section thoroughly, this section allows the developer to hold an
option on the property until May 24, 2023, and to do nothing with an option to say
they are not going to do anything as of May 23, 2023, and get a refund of the deposit. 
He said if the developer is looking to start soon, he thinks that section should be taken
out.  He said if not, the Council should pass this item to a second reading. 
 
Mr. Chodkowski said the agreement in and of itself provides protections for both
parties and to single out one particular provision does not invalidate or does not
provide the whole context in which the agreement also protects and defends the
interests of the City. 

Mr. Shaw said Section 4.12 states the developer can hold an option on the property
until January 23, 2023, and still get a $20,000 return on the deposit and not a single
thing happens.  He asked if he was correct in the reviews of those two sections. 

Mr. Chodkowski said yes, providing the City Council were to approve the request for
that option.

Mr. Shaw said that option is in the development agreement, so the Council would be
approving that tonight because it states the effective date is tied to the resolution. 

Mr. Chodkowski said his understanding of the agreement is that requesting those
extensions is not automatic and the extensions have to be approved by the City
Council. 

Mr. Shaw said Section 4.12 states there is no extension that is needed and that is the
set time period, and Section 4.11 allows two 60-day extensions providing deposits of
$10,000 each which then can still be returned to the developer.

Mr. McDonald said this agreement is still in draft form and it is not the final
agreement.  He said the request is to renegotiate and finalize this agreement
substantially on these terms.  He said his understanding is the developer has a certain
amount of time to close, that is what the $20,000 deposit is for and if, for some reason,
the developer is not ready to close, the developer can extend for 60 days with a
$10,000 nonrefundable deposit. 

Mr. Shaw read Section 4.11 and he said it already establishes the timeline.  He said
this information was not in the presentation to the public.

Mr. Chodkowski explained there are two timelines in the agreement, one being the
timeline to meet the conditions to close and then the timeline for closing, and these
timelines are not one in the same.  He explained the differences in the two timelines
and the penalties.  He said these timelines are not dissimilar to the agreements with the
library or other developments. 

Mr. Shaw said that Mr. Chodkowski said the developer wanted to start immediately,
but there are two provisions that give the developer a date to close of January 2023 or
a future date of May 24, 2023.

Mr. Chodkowski said his comments about the developer were that the developer
wished to start as soon as possible.  He said he is quite confident if the Council chose
to table this particular item tonight and visit it at another meeting, that it would not
invalidate the developer’s desire to come back and build two weeks later or six months
later if that was the timeframe it takes for the Council to pass this particular legislation.

10 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



Mr. Shaw said that would be his request as the public has had just a few days to
review this project as well as any third parties interested in this site or existing
business owners.  He said his recommendation would be to remove those two sections
because he does not see how it is a more of a penalty to the developer than it is to the
City.  He said if the developer is holding on to that land for a year or year and a half,
then the developer is penalized $20,000, but the City and its residents are penalized
because the City is not able to market that property.

Mr. Chodkowski said that is why Mr. Shaw has a vote and he does not. 

Mr. Shaw said the proposed development agreement shows a date of 2021.  He asked
when City Staff started working on this agreement.

Mr. Chodkowski said the initial proposal arrived right before Thanksgiving.

Mr. Shaw asked, regarding page 26 of Exhibit A and page 25 of the development
agreement, who are the individuals who provided comments in the margin that appear
to be negotiation efforts.

Mr. Chodkowski said his comments are listed as CB, and the comments from DF are
from Doug Falor, one of the agents of the developer. 

Mr. Shaw said Section 5.2 mentions 150 temporary jobs will be provided within this
development agreement, and it has been stated several times this project is a concept
and not a set-in stone project.  He asked Mr. Chodkowski to disclose what the 150
jobs are that are being provided. 

Mr. Chodkowski said he is not able to disclose that information.

Mr. Shaw said he has a problem that the Council is asked to vote on a development
agreement with a detailed item and City Staff are unable to provide context to this
information for the residents.  He said he also sees no details related  to the Mayor’s
comments on the alleged $13 million that would go to the schools with no calculations
available. 

Mr. Chodkowski said those jobs would have to be validated by the developer with
respect to the agreement.  He said the way the agreements come about in this
particular instance is that the CRA is tied to employment as well as investment
dollars.  He said while the agreement might say 150 jobs and the developer can only
produce documentation of 70 jobs, the City is under no obligation to award the CRA
in the context of how the agreement is structured.  He said this project is a long and
complicated process and there are multiple agreements involved that are the checks
and balances along the way.   He said this item is the start of a marathon that will lead
to the win of a $40 million multi-family investment comprised of 192 market rate units
and 133 senior units.  He said this project is a process that takes time and a partnership
of trust.  He said there are multiple steps along the way.  He said he is here to advance
the interests of the Council in accordance with policy, procedure, and the law he is
required to follow that will ensure the checks and balances exist and are in place to
address the concerns of Mr. Shaw relative to the jobs and benefits the agreement
allows City Staff to negotiate and enter into.

Mr. Shaw said $40 million has been brought up multiple times.  He asked if the City
has the due diligence or the analysis provided prior to the site development market
valuation plan stated in the development agreement.

Mr. Chodkowski said he does not.

Mr. Shaw said the research is not available to enter into this agreement to give to the
residents.  He said he is going on the hope and what if of a 30-year item where the
residents stated clearly what they wanted in this area.  He said the combined number
of units is 325 with 454 parking spaces and asked how it was calculated.

Mr. Chodkowski again explained this development has to go before the Planning
Commission where any issues will be ironed out, and he reiterated the process.

Mr. Shaw asked Mr. McDonald if Section G under Article III is standard language in

11 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



the City’s development agreements.

Mr. McDonald said it is standard language and it is standard with respect to Ohio
Revised Code Section 3517.13 that no members have any connection with the
developer.  He confirmed there is no litigation that would adversely affect the City's
ability to carry out this agreement.

Mr. Chodkowski reviewed the monetary value of the CRA for Mr. Shaw. 

Mr. Shaw said a resident had brought up thoughtful growth, and he is going to add in
forced growth.  He said there were comments he recalled on the Brandt Pike
Revitalization Plan that stated forced growth would destroy commercial businesses
and retail.  He said he just found out that the Huber Heights Chamber of Commerce
was not made aware of this project.  He said he would like to hear its feedback along
with feedback from Eric Knowlton and the owner of Lofino’s.  He said these
individuals and groups should have a little insight as well to see if this project is
beneficial to area businesses.  He said a lot of commercial businesses on Brandt Pike
are taking care of their properties and improving the properties.  He said  this
development has not happened, as he said in his original comments in 2014 and 2015,
because this City will not hire an Economic Development Director.  He said the City
has never had an Economic Development Director charged with doing this job.  He
said if the developer read through the Brandt Pike Revitalization Plan, he agrees with
Mr. Otto that they missed several items.  He said this Council passed an overlay plan
for mixed use development and a lot of other wonderful, inventive things for this
community and it is not in the plan at all.  He said the Council wasted a load of time
passing legislation for this particular area that it is not even using.  He said if the City
has a solid partnership with the Dayton Development Coalition and MVPRC, and a
solid plan that contains what the residents want, he believes if the City provides the
residents what they want and the Council tells them they will not be able to recoup
every dollar, but will give them the exact things they are looking for, he bets the
residents will say they are fine with that outcome.  He said the residents that he, Mrs.
Kitchen and Mr. Otto spoke with, who are directly impacted and in this area are
adamant about having no apartments.

Mr. McDonald and Mr. Chodkowski listed the deed restrictions for the parcel
purchased from Premier Health for Mayor Gore..

Mayor Gore reiterated what type of businesses cannot be placed on this parcel and he
stated that residential units and multi-family units are an approved use of the deed
restrictions along with light commercial businesses.  He said the study states the City
needs to reduce the amount of commercial space to increase the actual commercial
property value along the Brandt Pike Corridor.  He said there are not a lot of
options.  Mayor Gore said he is not interested in losing taxpayer money on this project. 

Mr. Shaw said he would question if the ordinance provided by the previous City
Manager and the review by the Law Director at that time was accurate.  He said that is
what the Council told the residents it was going to be.  He said the Planning
Commission was involved in that effort and the City went through a lot of steps and
communication on that effort.  He said he would hate to tell everyone in that area and
the entire community that the Council passed this item and he said the information
was valid at that time, but it does not meet the narrative.

Mayor Gore said it is the deed restrictions, and the study states it is necessary to
reduce retail space. 

Mr. Shaw said he will not support this item tonight.  He said if it is passed to a second
reading, he would be interested in seeing the business community’s input on this item. 

Mayor Gore said on social media, he saw a long list of items Mr. Shaw posted asking
people to come out and show their opposition.  He asked if he also asked people to
come out who are in support or is he trying to fill his narrative through social media?

Mr. Shaw said he did not state his opinion, he provided facts. 

Mayor Gore said there was an Executive Session last week to talk about this project
and to go over these details, but Mr. Shaw and Mr. Otto walked out. 

12 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



Mr. Shaw said three slides in, it was a complete waste of time.

Mayor Gore said the Council in Executive Session which the Council voted to go into
and Mr. Shaw decided not to participate in the discussion. 

Mr. Shaw said it was noted that the Council had to go into Executive Session because
a person’s private interest would overweigh or benefit the public’s interest.   He asked
where that issue is at tonight and if the Executive Session under that topic was valid.

Mr. McDonald said there were two choices that the Council could go into: the  public
sale of this property to the best bidder or the City could entertain an offer or a
development proposal received.  He said the Executive Session began and ended
quickly.  Mr. McDonald confirmed to Mr. Shaw that going out to public sale is always
an option. 

Mr. Otto said this project was not sold as an investment, it was sold as the City was
creating a space and a new part of the community that the community did not have. 
He said the Council can speak on the return of investment all day long, but the City
will not get a dollar back from the Veterans Memorial, and it is a good investment. 
He said the City will not get a dollar back from the bicycle amenities, but these
amenities are good investments.  He said the City will not get a dollar back on park
space or playground equipment, but these items are still good investments.  He said it
is not always about dollars, it is about taking care of the community and the people in
it.   He said these people came out for a solid year, walked up and down Brandt Pike,
gave comments, and said what they wanted.  He said the Council heard what it
wanted.   He said no one ever said, as long as you get the money back.  He said
sometimes it is not purely about the return on the investment, it is about providing an
amenity to the community.  He said otherwise there would not be a Kroger Aquatic
Center because it loses money every year.  He said the return on the investment should
not always be measured in dollars and cents.  He said sometimes it is measured in the
quality of life and wellbeing, especially for those in that area of town.  He said this
project gives nothing back to the people.  He said the project was not about dollars and
cents, it was about creating a community.  He said Mr. Campbell nailed it when he
said the Council is biting off a ton here.  He said Mr. Campbell implied the City could
lose a lot of money on this project and asked if the Council could stomach it.  He said
this effort was never about the money, it was about creating a space and an
opportunity for the residents to congregate, socialize, and enjoy themselves.

On a call of the vote, Mr. Lyons, Mr. Webb, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, and Mrs.
Byrge voted yea; Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Shaw, and Mr. Otto voted nay.  The motion
passes 5-3.

 
13.   City Official Reports and Comments

 
  Mr. Shaw said he is wearing his Bengals' tie today and he will be hoping for a win on

Sunday.  He said he would like to see the Bengals go to the Super Bowl.  

Mr. Webb said this morning he and his wife participated in Coffee With A Cop.  He
said there was a good number of Huber Heights Police Officers at the Huber Heights
Church of God this morning with coffee and donuts and an opportunity for all to
address comments to the Police Division.  He said it was phenomenal.  He said this
event will be done on an ongoing basis with varying times and locations.  He thanked
the Huber Heights Police Division and the Huber Height Church of God.  He said he
gained so much knowledge of the Police Division.

 
14.   Executive Session

 
  There was no need for an Executive Session.

 
15.   Adjournment

13 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



 
Mayor Gore adjourned the Regular Session City Council Meeting at 8:38 p.m.  

  
____________________________
Clerk of Council

   ____________________________
Date

     
____________________________
Mayor

  ____________________________
Date

14 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

January 24,    2022



   
AI-8168     Pending Business      A.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
ZC 21-47 - Campbell Berling - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - East Side Of Bellefontaine Road South Of
Chambersburg Road
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council Work

Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 01/04/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning From Agricultural To Planned Residential And A Basic Development Plan
For The Property Located On The East Side Of Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And
Further Identified As Parcel Number P70-03908-0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting
The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case 21-47).
(third reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Campbell Berling, requests approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential and a Basic
Development Plan for 22.968 acres on Bellefontaine Road for a residential subdivision.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O- 

 
 

TO APPROVE A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL TO PLANNED RESIDENTIAL AND A 
BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF 
BELLEFONTAINE ROAD AND SOUTH OF CHAMBERSBURG ROAD AND FURTHER 
IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBER P70-03908-0126 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION (ZONING CASE 21-47). 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case 21-47 and on December 14, 
2021, recommended approval by a vote of 5-0 of the Rezoning and the Basic Development Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Rezoning and the Basic Development Plan 
(Zoning Case 21-47) is hereby approved in accordance with the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation and following conditions: 
 

1. The Basic Development Plan site plans shall be the plans stamped received by the City of 
Huber Heights Planning Department on November 16, 2021, unless specifically modified 
below.   

2. The minimum setbacks shall be as follows:  25-foot front yard, minimum 25-foot rear 
yard with a maximum of 15 lots having a 20-foot rear yard setback and 6-foot side yard. 

3. An average of 40 percent of the surface area of the front façade shall be finished with 
brick or stone masonry products. 

4. A drop lane for northbound traffic shall be installed and an acceleration lane to 
northbound Bellefontaine Road shall be installed pending the results of a traffic impact 
study and approval by the City Engineer. 

5. The applicant shall meet all petroleum company easement requirements. 
6. Prior to the issuance of a zoning permit, the applicant shall submit and receive approval 

of a Detailed Development Plan through the Planning Commission.  
7. Prior to the issuance of a zoning permit, the applicant shall enter into a PUD Agreement 

with the City for the purpose, but not the sole purpose, of establishing the development 
obligations of the applicant and requiring the submittal of a performance bond, cash 
bond, or letter of credit to insure the installation of landscaping as approved. The bond or 
letter of credit shall be in an amount equal to the applicant’s estimate of the cost of 
installation as approved by the Planning Department and shall remain in effect until such 
time as the landscaping has been completed as determined by the Planning Department. 
Upon completion of the installation of landscaping as required by the approved landscape 
plan, the applicant may request release of the performance bond or letter of credit.  
Following an inspection by the Planning Department and upon determination by the 
department that the landscaping has been completed in accordance with the approved 
landscaping plan, 80 percent of the performance bond or letter of credit may be released.  
However, the performance bond or letter of credit will not be released until a 
maintenance bond lasting three growing seasons, or letter of credit equal to 20 percent of 
the initial performance bond or letter of credit to ensure maintenance of the landscaping, 
is submitted to and accepted by the Planning Department.  The term of the maintenance 
bond shall be three growing seasons. 
 

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of  this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 



Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the______ day of ___________ , 2022; 
           Yeas;            Nays. 
 
Effective Date:   
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Date      Date 



   
AI-8169     Pending Business      B.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
ZC 21-34 - The Annex Group - 6502 Old Troy Pike - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council Work

Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 11/16/2021 and 12/07/2021

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning To Planned Residential And A Basic Development Plan For The Property
Located At 6502 Old Troy Pike And Further Identified As Parcel Number P70 04004 0003 On The Montgomery
County Auditor’s Tax Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case
21-34).
(fourth reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, the Annex Group is requesting approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential and a Basic
Development Plan for 20.0 acres at the northeast corner of Old Troy Pike and Chambersburg Road at 6503 Old
Troy Pike (ZC 21-34). 

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O- 

 
 

TO APPROVE A REZONING TO PLANNED RESIDENTIAL AND A BASIC DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6502 OLD TROY PIKE AND FURTHER 
IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBER P70 04004 0003 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
AUDITOR’S TAX MAP AND ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION (ZONING CASE 21-34). 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case 21-34 and on October 26, 
2021, recommended approval by a vote of 5-0 of the Rezoning to Planned Residential and a Basic 
Development Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential and a Basic 
Development Plan (Zoning Case 21-34) is hereby approved in accordance with the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation and following conditions: 
 

1. The Basic Development Plan shall be the plans stamped received by the City of Huber 
Heights Planning Department on September 24, 2021.   

2. A minimum of 25% of the surface area of the buildings shall be finished with brick or 
stone masonry products. 

3. Chambersburg Road will be improved to a forty-five (45) foot half right-of-way section 
per our City’s Thoroughfare Plan. 

4. Prior to the issuance of a zoning permit, the applicant shall submit and receive approval 
of a Detailed Development Plan through the Planning Commission. 

5. Applicant shall implement any recommendation from the Traffic Impact Study dated 
October 2021. 

6. Prior to the issuance of a zoning permit, the applicant shall enter into a PUD Agreement 
with the City for the purpose, but not the sole purpose, of establishing the development 
obligations of the applicant and requiring the submittal of a performance bond, cash 
bond, or letter of credit to insure the installation of landscaping as approved. The bond or 
letter of credit shall be in an amount equal to the applicant’s estimate of the cost of 
installation as approved by the Planning Department and shall remain in effect until such 
time as the landscaping has been completed as determined by the Planning Department. 
Upon completion of the installation of landscaping as required by the approved landscape 
plan, the applicant may request release of the performance bond or letter of credit.  
Following an inspection by the Planning Department and upon determination by the 
department that the landscaping has been completed in accordance with the approved 
landscaping plan, 80% of the performance bond or letter of credit may be released.  
However, the performance bond or letter of credit will not be released until a 
maintenance bond lasting three growing seasons, or letter of credit equal to 20% of the 
initial performance bond or letter of credit to ensure maintenance of the landscaping, is 
submitted to and accepted by the Planning Department.  The term of the maintenance 
bond shall be three growing seasons. 
 

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of  this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 



Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the _______day of ______________ 2021; 
           Yeas;            Nays. 
 
Effective Date:   
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
            
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
            
Date      Date 



   
AI-8198     New Business      A.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
City Sidewalk Requirements
Submitted By: Stephanie Wunderlich
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 01/18/2022 and
02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Motion To Direct The City Manager To Submit The Proposed Amendments To Part Eleven - Planning
And Zoning Code, Title One - Subdivision Regulations, Chapter 1109 - Subdivision Design Standards
Of The Huber Heights City Code Regarding Sidewalk Requirements To The Planning Commission For
Consideration.

Purpose and Background
At the February 8, 2022 Council Work Session, the City Council recommended sending the proposed
amendments to Part Eleven - Planning and Zoning Code, Title One - Subdivision Regulations, Chapter
1109 - Subdivision Design Standards of the Huber Heights City Code drafted by the Law Director
regarding sidewalk requirements (see attached) to the Planning Commission for consideration as a text
amendment.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Draft Ordinance 



PROPOSED ORDINANCE FOR PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

STATE OF OHIO

AMENDING PART ELEVEN PLANNING AND ZONING CODE, TITLE ONE 
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, CHAPTER 1109 SUBDIVISION DESIGN 
STANDARDS, SECTION 1109.15 SIDEWALKS; 1109.08 OFFICIAL 
THOROUGHFARE DESIGN STANDARDS; AND TABLE 4 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

WHEREAS, City Council desires to require sidewalks and curb associated with all new 
developments within the City; and

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended certain amendments to Chapter 1109 in order to 
meet City Council’s desire; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 1101.07 City Council may initiate a case to amend the 
Subdivision Regulations; and

WHEREAS, City council has proposed this amendment to the Planning Commission for 
consideration and recommendation as required by 1101.07; and

WHEREAS, Planning Commission has _____________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio 
that:

Section 1.  Chapter 1109, Section 1109.15 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.15- Sidewalks.
 

(a) Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of a street in all subdivisions 
where all lots have either a width of less than 80 feet at the building line, or 
where the lot is less than 15,000 square feet. The City Planning Commission 
may  shall       require that sidewalks be constructed where lot frontage is greater 
than 80 feet where they may be essential to pedestrian movement and safety. 
Sidewalks may  shall   be required to be constructed along secondary or main 
highways   all   arterial roads   and collector roads   as indicated in the Official 
Thoroughfare Plan for the City and these regulations.

(b) Public sidewalks shall be required for all commercial lots.

(c) Public sidewalks may be required for industrial lots, subject to the approval 
of the Planning   Commission.



Section 2, Chapter 1109, Section 1109.08 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.08 - Official thoroughfare design standards.

(a) The design standards of and the required improvements to arterial streets 
and roads, as shown on the Official Thoroughfare Plan are contained in Table 
4. Construction design criteria on these streets are not specified in these 
regulations but are to be determined by the City Director of Public Safety and 
Service, or his designee, when and if such a street abuts or crosses the 
proposed subdivision. Certain improvements may be waived after review and 
approval by the City Planning Commission. In all cases right-of-way dedications
shall be required.

(b) The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements including 
sidewalk, curb, storm drainage and the required pavement width when the 
streets lie within the subdivision. On divided streets left turn lanes shall be 
provided at all median openings.

(c)  When developing on property the abuts   along   one side of an existing 
c  ollector or   any   arter  i  al     street or roadway which is included in the Official 
Thoroughfare Plan, the subdivider shall be responsible for one   sidewalk, one   
curb, and   pavement widening to thoroughfare width of his side,   the side of the 
collector or arterial street or roadway   adjacent to the subdivision  .  In addition  ,   
all necessary adjustments to existing pavement, and storm drainage for the 
street in accordance with an agreement with the City. Where sight distance or 
other engineering requirements make it imperative, the pavement adjustment 
responsibility shall include the replacement of up to the entire existing 
pavement.

(d) Where marginal access streets are used to provide access to major   arterials
(82 to 120 feet right-of-way widths) street   improvements on major   arterial 
streets   shall  may  be waived but sidewalks shall be required  .

Section 3. Table 4 of Chapter 1109 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Right of Way 
Width (feet)

Sidewalks 
(feet)

Planting Strip 
(feet)

Median (feet) Pavement 
Width (feet)

70 5 8   7.5 none 44   45

82 5 5   4.5 14 **62   63

90 5 8   7.5 16 **64   65

120 5 12   11 16 **88

Section 4.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open 



meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
Committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public and 
in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law 
and the Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

____________________________ _____________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

_____________________________ _____________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8201     New Business      B.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Age Friendly Community Status - Grant Application
Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski
Department: Economic Development
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Apply For, And Accept If Awarded, A Grant Through
The Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission To Explore Becoming An Age-Friendly Community
As Designated By AARP.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission, with funding support from DMH-Fund of The Dayton
Foundation, is soliciting grant applications from communities interested in becoming Age-Friendly
Communities as defined by AARP.  With a larger and growing senior population, the City is interested
in pursuing this grant opportunity to improve quality-of-life conditions for its senior population.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPLY FOR, AND ACCEPT IF AWARDED, A 
GRANT THROUGH THE MIAMI VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION TO 
EXPLORE BECOMING AN AGE-FRIENDLY COMMUNITY AS DESIGNATED BY AARP.

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights (“City”) is a growing community of  43,439 residents, 15.4%
of whom are 65 years-of-age or older; and

WHEREAS, research data indicates the percentage of the regional population 65 years-of-age or 
older will continue to grow to more than 25%; and 

WHEREAS, numerous studies have found that senior citizen populations are having, and are 
projected to have, a positive and meaningful impact on the workforce and economy; and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission, with funding support from the 
DMH-Fund of The Dayton Foundation, is soliciting grant applications from communities interested 
in becoming Age-Friendly Communities as defined by AARP.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to apply for, and accept if award, a grant from
Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission to investigate the process and responsibilities for 
becoming an Age-Friendly Community as defined by AARP.

Section 2.  This legislation is adopted in accordance with Section 171.03(2) and Section 
171.12(a)1 of the City Code of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio.  

Section 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4.  This  Resolution shall  go into effect  upon its  passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

                                                                                                                                        
Clerk of Council Mayor

                                                                                                                                        
Date Date



   
AI-8202     New Business      C.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
CR Dayton Lease
Submitted By: Jason Foster
Department: Economic Development
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Certain Lease.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation authorizes the City Manager to sign one new lease at the CR Dayton property.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CERTAIN LEASE.

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of the former CR Dayton shopping center property; and

WHEREAS, the property manager for the shopping center has recommended the execution of a 
certain lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a rental agreement on behalf of 
the City of Huber Heights as landlord with respect to Unit #12 at 6079 Brandt Pike. 

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This  Resolution shall  go into effect  upon its  passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

                                                                                                                                        
Clerk of Council Mayor

                                                                                                                                        
Date Date



   
AI-8200     New Business      D.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Digital Sign Maintenance - Award Contract
Submitted By: Jamie Frey
Department: City Manager
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Award A Contract To KAP Signs To Perform Cosmetic
Maintenance On The Digital Highway Sign At The Rose Music Center And Waiving The Competitive
Bidding Requirements.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation authorizes the City Manager to waive the competitive bidding requirements and enter
into a contract with KAP Signs for cosmetic maintenance to the digital highway sign at the Rose Music
Center at a cost not to exceed $35,000.  The funds are available in the 2022 City Budget of the General
Fund.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: General Fund
Cost: $35,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022–R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO KAP SIGNS TO 
PERFORM COSMETIC MAINTENANCE ON THE DIGITAL HIGHWAY SIGN AT THE ROSE 
MUSIC CENTER AND WAIVING THE COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.

WHEREAS, completing this project will improve the current aesthetic of the sign; and

WHEREAS, KAP Signs is a uniquely qualified company to perform this type of service; and

WHEREAS, KAP Signs initially installed the sign in 2014; and

WHEREAS, the funds for this project are available in the current 2022 Rose Music Center Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.       The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with KAP Signs for cosmetic
maintenance of the digital highway sign at a cost not to exceed $35,000.00.

Section 2.   Consistent with provisions of the City Charter of Huber Heights and the Codified 
Ordinances of Huber Heights, the competitive bidding requirements are hereby waived.

Section 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action were in 
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the
Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter of
the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ __________________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ __________________________________  
Date Date



   
AI-8199     New Business      E.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Huber Heights City Code Revisions - Construction Noise
Submitted By: Stephanie Wunderlich
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 11/16/2021 and
12/07/2021 and
01/04/2022 and
01/18/2022 and
02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Designating Construction Noise During Certain Hours As Civil Infractions And
Authorizing The City Manager To Adopt A Fine And Penalty Schedule For Such Infractions By Enacting
Chapter 1323 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The City Of Huber Heights.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The City Code in Section 509.08(b)(10) - Disturbing The Peace (see attached) addresses the days and
hours allowed for construction work.  It is currently 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on weekdays.  Construction
on Saturdays (due to noise) has become an issue lately.

The Law Director has prepared some draft revisions to the City Code regarding construction noise (see
attached).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-
 

DESIGNATING CONSTRUCTION NOISE DURING CERTAIN HOURS AS CIVIL 
INFRACTIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ADOPT A FINE AND 
PENALTY SCHEDULE FOR SUCH INFRACTIONS BY ENACTING CHAPTER 1323 OF 
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS.

WHEREAS, Council believes that construction noises should be limited to during certain times 
of certain days; and

WHEREAS, existing criminal provisions regarding disturbing the peace have not proven 
effective to deter against prohibited construction noises; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the existing disturbing the peace violation, Council desires to 
designate certain construction noise violations civil infractions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  Part Thirteen - Building Code, Title Three - Local Provisions, Chapter 1323 
Construction Noise is hereby adopted to read as follows:

1323  CONSTRUCTION NOISE

1323.01 Definitions

“Construction Noise “ shall mean noise created by, the erection (including 
excavating), demolition, alteration, or repair of any structure, within or adjacent to
a residential zoning district including but not limited to noise from heavy 
equipment such as crawlers, tractors, bulldozers, cement mixers, rotary drills and 
augers, loaders, power shovels, saws, cranes, derricks, graders, off-highway 
trucks, ditchers, trenchers, compactors, compressors; pavement breakers, paving 
equipment, pile drivers, jackhammers, sandblasting tools, and other similar 
equipment  (collectively “construction activity”) that disturb the good order and 
quiet of the City.

“Owner of Property” shall mean the owner of the real property where the 
construction activity that leads to Construction Noise originates. 

“Stop Work Order” means an order issued which requires that all construction 
activity on a site be stopped.

1323.02 Prohibition

(a) No property owner shall operate, cause to operate, or allow to operate any 
tools or equipment or activity that causes Construction Noise between 7 p.m. and 
7 a.m. on Monday through Saturday or any time on Sunday or legal Ohio 
holidays. 

(b) 1323.02(a) shall not apply when the Construction Noise is associated with 
urgent necessity in the interest of public health and safety, and then only with a 
permit from the City Engineer, which permit may be granted for a period not to 
exceed three days while the emergency continues and which permit may be 
renewed for a period of three days or less while the emergency continues. 

(c) 1323.02(a) shall not apply to Construction Noise originating from water main 
breaks, repair of collapsed roadway from water or sewer issues; City/ODOT 



projects paving at night on City throughfares; and utility company repairs due to 
storms, or accidents affecting utility service.

1323.03 Civil Infraction 

(a) The Huber Heights Civil Infractions Violations Bureau shall have the 
jurisdiction over any Construction Noise Violations under this Chapter 1323. The 
hearing office shall be a City Prosecutor.

(b)  All Construction Noise Violations infractions that are a violation under 
section 1323.02 shall be civil infractions handled pursuant to and be governed by 
this section 1323.03. The provisions of this chapter and all actions taken pursuant 
to this Chapter are civil and remedial in nature and not designed to punish the 
offender and are not criminal offenses. No violation shall be considered a 
misdemeanor of any class, and no Property Owner shall be arrested for a violation
of a Construction Noise Violation under this Chapter

(c) A Construction Noise Violation Notice shall be the summons and 
complaint for purposes of issuing Construction Noise citations. Each Construction
Noise Notice issued shall contain the following information: 

(i) That the person upon whom it is served must answer in relation to the 
Construction Noise infraction charged in the Notice; 

(ii)The allowable answers that may be made and that the person will be 
afforded a hearing if he/she denies a violation of 1323.02;

(iii)That any answer must be made to Huber Heights Civil Infractions 
Violations Bureau, the address for the Bureau, and the time within which 
an answer is to be made;

(iv)The penalties that may result from failure to timely answer and the fine
that arises from the Construction Noise infraction; and

(iv)A warning that failure to timely answer or to appear at a requested 
hearing will be considered an admission of the Construction Noise 
infraction, and that a default civil judgment potentially may be entered 
against the Property Owner if the person fails to timely answer or to 
appear at a requested hearing.

(d)  Procedures relative to Construction Noise Notices. 

(1) Issuance. The Enforcement Officer who issues a Construction Noise 
Notice for a Construction Noise infraction shall complete the Notice by 
identifying the Construction Noise infraction charged, recording the address of 
the property, and indicating the date, time, and place of the Construction Noise 
infraction charged. The Officer shall sign the Notice and affirm the facts it 
contains. If the Property Owner is present, the Officer shall personally serve the 
Construction Noise Notice upon the Property Owner. If the Property Owner is not
present, the Officer post the Notice in a conspicuous place on the property and 
mail it to the Property Owner at the last known address of the Property Owner. 
Constructive service of a Construction Noise Notice upon a Property Owner by 
affixation and mail as provided in this division has the same force and effect and 
potentially subjects the Property Owner to the same fine and the same penalties 
for failure to timely answer or to appear as if the Construction Noise Notice were 
personally served. The original of a Construction Noise Notice issued pursuant to 
this section or any true copy of it shall be considered a record kept in the ordinary 
course of business of the City and of the enforcement agency whose officer issued
it, and shall be prima facie evidence of the facts it contains.

(2)  Answer to charges. A person who is served with a Construction Noise 
Notice charging the commission of a Construction Noise infraction may answer 



the charge by personal appearance at the Huber Heights Police Division during 
normal business hours or by mail. The answer shall be made within ten days of 
the issuance of the Construction Noise Notice (the mailing must be postmarked 
within ten days of the issuance of the Notice) and shall be: (i) An admission that 
the violation of 1323.02 occurred by payment of the fine or (ii)A denial that the 
infraction occurred and a request for a hearing. A denial must in writing. When a 
person denies that a violation of 1323.02 has occurred, he shall be granted a 
hearing which shall be civil in nature. The Bureau shall set a date for the hearing 
and notify the person, in writing, of the date, time and place of the hearing in the 
same fashion as set forth in Huber Code section 353.05.

(3)  Failure to answer.  When a person is personally or constructively 
served with a Construction Noise Notice charging the commission of a 
Construction Noise infraction and the person fails to answer the charge within the 
time specified by the local authority, the Huber Heights Civil Infractions 
Violations Bureau shall issue a notice of infraction and send such notification of 
infraction to the address on record of the Property Owner as follows: (i) If the 
person who fails to answer was personally served with the Construction Noise 
Notice, a notification of infraction shall be sent to that person at his/her most 
recent address appearing in such records; (ii) If the person was constructively 
served with the Construction Noise Notice, a notification of infraction shall be 
sent to the owner at his most recent address appearing in the public records.

(e) Stop Work Order.  In addition to any other penalty otherwise provided by 
law, if three or more judgments or default judgments have been entered against a 
person and the person has not paid any one or more of the judgments or default 
judgments, within ten days of the date of entry of the third judgment, the Huber 
Heights Civil Infractions Violations Bureau may give notice of that fact to the 
Enforcement Officer who shall then issue a Stop Work Order until such time as 
the violations have been paid. 

1323.04  Fines, penalties and costs.

(a)  The City Manager shall adopt a fine schedule for a violation of civil 
infractions and prescribe an additional penalty or penalties for failure to answer 
any charges of the violation in a timely manner, provided that no fine adopted or 
additional penalty prescribed exceed $250.00, plus costs and other administrative 
charges, per violation

(b)  All fines and penalties established for a Construction Noise infraction shall be
collected by the Finance Director and paid into the City Treasury.

(c) The costs of proceedings shall be administratively determined by the City 
Manager.

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:



AUTHENTICATION:

                                                                                                                                        
Clerk of Council Mayor

                                                                                                                                        
Date Date



   
AI-8193     New Business      F.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
2022 Street Program - Solicit Bids
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise And Receive Bids From Qualified
Firms For The 2022 Street Improvement Program Non-Concrete Work.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will allow for the soliciting, advertising and receiving of bids for the 2022 Street
Program.  The Local Street Capital Improvement Fund will be utilized to construct this project at a cost
not to exceed $1,200,000.  Plans and specifications will be prepared by the Engineering Division.   
 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Project Location Map 
Resolution 
Exhibit A 





CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT, ADVERTISE AND RECEIVE BIDS 
FROM QUALIFIED FIRMS FOR THE 2022 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM NON-
CONCRETE WORK.

WHEREAS, City Staff have identified certain streets within the City which are in urgent need of 
repair; and

WHEREAS, Council has determined to proceed with the 2022 Street Program, as described in 
Exhibit A, during the 2022 construction season including reconstruction of the streets identified on 
the list, related underground utility repair costs, roadway earthwork and miscellaneous base and 
drainage work; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Street Capital Improvement Fund is available to cover the cost of this work; 
and

WHEREAS, City Council has agreed to a Request For Proposals (RFP) process to be facilitated by 
City Staff.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to solicit, advertise, and receive responses 
from qualified firms for the construction of the 2022 Street Improvement Program non-concrete 
work as described in Exhibit A in accordance with Section 171.03 of the Codified Ordinances of 
Huber Heights.  The cost of this portion of the 2022 Street Improvement Program will not exceed 
$1,200,000.00.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

_______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date  Date









   
AI-8195     New Business      G.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
2022 Sidewalk Program/Concrete Portion of the 2022 Street Program - Solicit Bids
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From Qualified
Firms For The 2022 Sidewalk Replacement Program And The Concrete Portion Of The 2022 Street
Improvement Program.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
At this time, it is necessary to secure construction bids for the remaining portions of the 2022 Sidewalk
Replacement Program.  In August 2021, City Council passed legislation declaring the necessity of
making these sidewalk repairs.  Since that time, property owners have had the option of doing the work
themselves, utilizing a bonded contractor, and few homeowners have elected to perform the sidewalk
work with their own contractor.
 
This legislation allows the City to solicit bids for the 2022 Sidewalk Program.  This year’s program
includes Kingsbury Drive, Kismet Place, Klyemore Drive, Larcomb Drive, Leawood Drive, Longford
Drive, Menlo Way, Montague Road, and Natoma Place.
 
This legislation also allows for the receipt of bids for the concrete portion of the 2022 Street
Improvement Program.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Project Location Map 
Resolution 





CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT, ADVERTISE, AND RECEIVE BIDS 
FROM QUALIFIED FIRMS FOR THE 2022 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM AND
THE CONCRETE PORTION OF THE 2022 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, City Council has previously authorized the Resolution of Necessity No. 2021-R-
7028 for the 2022 Sidewalk Program; and

WHEREAS, City Staff believe it prudent to bid the concrete portion of the 2022 Street Program 
with other concrete related construction work; and

WHEREAS, City Council has agreed to a Request For Proposal (RFP) process to be facilitated by 
City Staff.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to solicit, advertise, and receive responses 
from qualified firms for the construction of the 2022 Sidewalk Program and the concrete portion 
of the 2022 Street Improvement Program in accordance with Section 171.03 of the Codified 
Ordinances of Huber Heights.  The cost of the Sidewalk Program portion of this work shall not 
exceed $150,000.00.  The cost of the concrete portion of the Street Improvement Program shall 
not exceed $900,000.00.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

_______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date  Date



   
AI-8194     New Business      H.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Sanitary Sewer Lining - Solicit Bids
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From Qualified
Firms For The Construction Of The 2022 Rehabilitation Of Sewer Lines Project.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will allow for the soliciting, advertising, and receiving of bids for the 2022 Rehabilitation
of Sewer Lines Project.  Lining the sanitary sewer will be performed as a corrective action to eliminate
groundwater infiltration, improve the flow capacity, increase the strength of the pipes, and reduce
sewage treatment costs.  The Sewer Fund will be utilized to construct this project at a cost not to
exceed $300,000.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT, ADVERTISE, AND RECEIVE BIDS FROM
QUALIFIED FIRMS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 2022 REHABILITATION OF SEWER 
LINES PROJECT.

WHEREAS, City Council has determined that there is a need to improve the sanitary sewer system by 
eliminating the inflow and infiltration; and

WHEREAS, City Staff have identified sanitary sewer lines within the City which are in urgent need of 
rehabilitation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to solicit, advertise, and receive responses from 
qualified firms for the construction of the 2022 Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project at a cost not to 
exceed $300,000.00. 

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action were in 
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of 
the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

________________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date  Date



   
AI-8196     New Business      I.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Thomas Cloud Park Walking Path Paving - Solicit Bids
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise And Receive Bids From Qualified
Firms For The Construction Of The Thomas Cloud Path Resurfacing Project.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will allow the City to solicit bids for the construction of the Thomas Cloud Park Path
Resurfacing Project.  The City of Huber Heights has applied for and received a grant through the Miami
Valley Regional Planing Commission (MVRPC) to reconstruct the walking path at Thomas Cloud Park.
 This project includes milling the existing asphalt and repaving approximately 13,862 lineal feet of path.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Map 
Resolution 





CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT, ADVERTISE AND RECEIVE 
BIDS FROM QUALIFIED FIRMS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE THOMAS 
CLOUD PATH RESURFACING PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City Council has applied and received a grant through the Miami Valley 
Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC) for the construction of the Thomas Cloud 
Park Path Resurfacing Project; and

WHEREAS, City Council has determined to proceed with the construction of this project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio 
that:

Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to solicit, advertise, and receive responses 
from qualified firms for the construction of the Thomas Cloud Park Path Resurfacing 
Project at a cost not to exceed $180,000.00. 

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open 
meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
Committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in
compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law 
and the Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

________________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date  Date



   
AI-8197     New Business      J.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Carriage Trails - Street Dedications
Submitted By: Stephanie Wunderlich
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Accepting Certain Streets And Public Improvements For The Carriage Trails Subdivision.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The City has approved the improvements for Carriage Trails. The following are the streets that are
hereby accepted and approved: Dayflower Drive from Coneflower to Lakeside Street, Lakeside Street
from Carriage Trails Parkway to White Ash Drive, Redbud Way, White Ash Drive between both sides of
Lakeside Street, Red Buckeye Drive between Sunset Maple Drive and Willow Oak Drive, and Silver
Linden Drive between both sides of Lakeside Street. 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

ACCEPTING CERTAIN STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE CARRIAGE
TRAILS SUBDIVISION.

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the orderly and efficient establishment of 
public improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City has approved the improvements for the Carriage Trails Subdivision. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The public improvements and dedicated right-of-way in the Carriage Trails 
Subdivision include the following and are hereby accepted and approved:

Dayflower Drive from Coneflower to Lakeside Street
Lakeside Street from Carriage Trails Parkway to White Ash Drive
Redbud Way
White Ash Drive between both sides of Lakeside Street
Silver Linden Drive between both sides of Lakeside Street
Red Buckeye Drive from Sunset Maple Drive to Willow Oak Drive

 
Section 2.       It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and all deliberations of this Council and any of its Committees that resulted in such a 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 

Passed by Council on the ______ day of ______________, 2022;
_________ Yeas; ________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

_______________________________                     ________________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

_______________________________      ________________________________
Date Date



C
:\

U
se

rs
\M

at
th

ew
.O

m
al

le
y\

ap
pd

at
a\

lo
ca

l\
te

m
p\

A
cP

ub
lis

h_
20

83
6\

20
21

-0
3-

29
_C

T 
M

as
te

r 
Pa

vi
ng

 P
la

n.
dw

g 
by

:m
at

th
ew

.o
m

al
le

y 
on

 0
1/

25
/2

02
2 

@
 0

3:
00

:0
4 

pm
 ~

 ©
 M

•E
 C

om
pa

ni
es

, 
In

c.

MASTER PAVING
PLAN

300 150 300

300

1" = 300'

N/A

DRAFT

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

SHEET NO.:

09-048

DESIGN CHECK

EFR JBK

1/1

1 inch =         ft.
( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0

JANUARY, 2022

STAMP:

SHEET TITLE:

CARRIAGE TRAILS

HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

PRELIMINARY PLAN

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

SCALE:

DATE:

SUBMISSION:

REVISION:

M E NO.:

12/13/09 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
3/16/10 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
6/2/10 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
7/28/10 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
8/2/10 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
1/11/12 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
1/25/13 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN

8/7/13 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
9/9/13 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN

DRAFT

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

SHEET NO.:

JBK

DESIGN CHECK

JBK

1/1

23 Triangle Park Drive, Suite 2300
Cincinnati, OH 45246
Contact:  Jeff Koehn

513-942-3141 ext.  232
Fax: 513-881-2263
www.ibigroup.com

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0

STAMP:

SHEET TITLE:

SCALE:

DATE:

SUBMISSION:

REVISION:

M E NO.:

2/25/14 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
9/02/14 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
10/14/14 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN

DEFINING THE CITIES
OF TOMORROW

1/22/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
1/29/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER BILL
3/09/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
4/08/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
4/23/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
8/05/15 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
7/18/16 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
7/28/17 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
7/31/17 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
8/21/17 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN
8/23/17 REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN

REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN7/12/18
REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN8/08/19
REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN8/13/19
REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN7/31/20
REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN4/21/21
REVISED  LAYOUT PER KEN1/25/22

EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A



   
AI-8190     New Business      K.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Purchase of New Snowplow Dump Trucks
Submitted By: Linda Garrett
Department: Public Works Division: Public Works
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract To Purchase Two (2) Class Seven
Snowplow Dump Trucks And Appurtenant Equipment Thereto For The Public Works Division And
Waiving The Formal Bidding Requirements.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The Public Works Division is requesting approval to purchase two (2) new snowplow dump trucks.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Public Works Division Budget
Cost: $500,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT TO PURCHASE 
TWO (2) CLASS SEVEN SNOWPLOW DUMP TRUCKS AND APPURTENANT 
EQUIPMENT THERETO FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION AND WAIVING THE 
FORMAL BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.

WHEREAS, the need exists in the Public Works Division for two (2) class seven snowplow 
dump trucks to assist in snow removal and overall duties; and

WHEREAS, City Staff is researching vendors that can provide the vehicles at a reasonable price 
and delivery within a reasonable time and upon reasonable terms; and

WHEREAS, the market is such that once the vehicles are found, locking into a price and 
reasonable terms typically cannot wait for the normal approval process; and

WHEREAS, only one source of the necessary appurtenant equipment compatible with the class 
seven snowplow dump truck is reasonably available; and

WHEREAS, the funds for this purchase have been appropriated for the Public Works Division as
part of the approved 2022 Public Works Division Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  In accordance the Huber Heights Codified Ordinances, Council hereby waives the
requirements to formally bid the purchase of two (2) class seven snowplow dump trucks 
provided the aggregate price with necessary appurtenant equipment does not exceed 
$500,000.00; and in accordance with Section 171.12(a)(1) of the Huber Heights Codified 
Ordinances, Council hereby waives the requirements to formally bid the necessary equipment 
appurtenant to said class seven snowplow dump trucks and awards the purchase and installation 
of the appurtenant equipment to K.E. Rose as the sole source provider.

Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to contract for the purchase of two (2) 
class seven snowplow dump trucks and necessary equipment appurtenant thereto for the Public 
Works Division with the vendor providing the lowest and best price as determined by the Public 
Works Division for Fiscal Year 2022 in an amount not to exceed $500,000.00.

Section 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________, 2022;
______ Yeas; ______ Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8191     New Business      L.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 02/14/2022  
Traffic Signals/Decorative Lighting - Maintenance/Repair/Construction - Solicit Bids/Award Contract
Submitted By: Linda Garrett
Department: Public Works Division: Public Works
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 02/08/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit Bids And Award A Contract For Services Related
To The Maintenance, Repair And Minor Construction Of Traffic Signals And Outdoor Decorative
Lighting.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The Public Works Division requests authorization to solicit bids and award a contract for traffic signal
and outdoor decorative lighting maintenance, repair, and construction.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Public Works Division Budget
Cost: $50,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT BIDS AND AWARD A CONTRACT FOR 
SERVICES RELATED TO THE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND MINOR CONSTRUCTION OF 
TRAFFIC SIGNALS AND OUTDOOR DECORATIVE LIGHTING.

WHEREAS, throughout the course of a three-year period, the City of Huber Heights will require 
services related to the maintenance, repair and minor construction of traffic control signals and outdoor 
decorative lighting throughout the City; and 

WHEREAS, the costs for such services are estimated to exceed $25,000.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to solicit bids and award a contract for services 
related to the repair, maintenance and minor construction of traffic control devices and outdoor 
decorative lighting in the City of Huber Heights.  This bid and contract shall be for a three-year period 
for 2022-2024 and shall be in an amount not to exceed $50,000.00 annually, subject to the availability 
of funds.

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action were in 
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of 
the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ ______________________________
Date Date


	Agenda
	AI_8167_Approval of Minutes - 1/24/22
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI_8168_ZC 21-47 - Campbell Berling - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - East Side Of Bellefontaine Road South Of Chambersburg Road
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8169_ZC 21-34 - The Annex Group - 6502 Old Troy Pike - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8198_City Sidewalk Requirements
	       ATT_Draft Ordinance
	AI_8201_Age Friendly Community Status - Grant Application
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8202_CR Dayton Lease
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8200_Digital Sign Maintenance - Award Contract
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8199_Huber Heights City Code Revisions - Construction Noise
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8193_2022 Street Program - Solicit Bids
	       ATT_Project Location Map
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8195_2022 Sidewalk Program/Concrete Portion of the 2022 Street Program - Solicit Bids
	       ATT_Project Location Map
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8194_Sanitary Sewer Lining - Solicit Bids
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8196_Thomas Cloud Park Walking Path Paving - Solicit Bids
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8197_Carriage Trails - Street Dedications
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8190_Purchase of New Snowplow Dump Trucks
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8191_Traffic Signals/Decorative Lighting - Maintenance/Repair/Construction - Solicit Bids/Award Contract
	       ATT_Resolution



